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1951 
,NEW ZEALAND 

OF ROYAL COMMISSION APPOINTED TO INQUIRE INTO 
REPORT UPON CLAIMS PREFERRED BY CERTAIN MAORI 

IMANTS CONCERNING THE PAYMENT OF CERTAIN MONEYS 
THE AOTEA DISTRICT MAORI LAND BOARD IN RESPECT 
THE WEST TAUPO TIMBER LANDS 

Laid on the Table of the House of Representatives by 
Command of His Excellency 

om mission to Inquire Into and Report Upon Claims Pref e.rred 
Certain Maori Claimants Concerning the Payment of Certain 
neys by the Aotea District Maori Land Board in Respect of the 

est Taupo Timber Lands • 

THE SIXTH by the Grace of God, of Great Britain, Northern 
eland, and the British Dominions beyond the Seas, King, 
fender of the Faith: 

o Our Trusty and -Well-beloved Counsellor, Srn MICHAEL MYERS, 
Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order of 
Saint Michael and Saint George, and to Our Trusty and 
Well-beloved subjects, HuBERT MAxwELL CHRISTIE, of 
Wellington, Company Director, and RICHARD ORMSBY, of Te 
Kuiti, Farmer : GREETING : 

EAs, pursuant to section 14 of the Maori Purposes Act, 1935, the 
District Maori Land Board paid to the Egmont Box Company, 

ed, a sum of £23,500 in terms of the said section : 
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And ·whereas it is provided by the said section that the 
sum together with certain costs and expenses shall be dee:rn 
loan to the o,vners, including the Crown, of the whole of 
described and ref erred to in a certain deed of agreement be 
the 23rd day of December, 1908, made between the M 
Tuwharetoa District Maori Land Board of the one part 
Tongariro Timber Company, Limited, of the other part 
such portions of the said lands as have been actually tra~s:f 
the Tongariro Timher Company, Limited, for an estate in fe 

And whereas it is further provided by the said section t 
payment of such sum as is therein referred to the said Boa 
by virtue of the said reciting Act and as security for the re 
of the moneys hereinhefore ref erred to, and together with 
thereon, be deemed to have a charge upon the said lands 
revenue therefrom, excepting any of such land or any interest' 
acquired or owned by the Crown: 

And whereas the said section makes provision for the app 
ment of the liability for the repayment of the said loan-mon 
between the Crown and the Maori owners of the said lands 
lwtween certain blocks of land therein referred to : 

And whereas certain Maoris have contended that if h 
operation of the said section they are rendered liable for the r 
ment of the said moneys, or any part thereof, they ought not to 
been so rendered liable, and that their lands should not have 
made subject to any charge as security for the repayment of the 
moneys, or an~T part thereof: 

A.nd whereas the Government is desirous 
justice of the respective claims and complaints of the Maori 
hereinbefore set forth should be tested by inquiry so that, if 
complaints be well founded and of substance, the Government 
be able to take order for the redress of the grievances laid upon 
Maoris: 

Now know ye, that "\Ve, reposing trust and confidence in 
impartiality, knowledge, and ability, do hereby nominate, constit 
and appoint you_, the said 

Sir Michael Myers, 

Huhert Maxwell Christie, and 

Richard Ormsby 
to he a Commission: 
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In respect of the sunis of money paid by the .Aotea District . 
and Board as aforesaid, to inquire and report-
( i) ·whether the charge imposed upon Maori lands, pursuant 

ection 14 of the Maori Purposes .Act, 1935, ought, in equity and 
d conscience to have been imposed upon the whole or any part 

such lands; 
(ii) Whether, in equity and good conscience, the Maori 

ers of such lands if liable ought to have been rendered liable 
the repayment of the whole or any part of the mo11eys paid 

the said Board to the Egmont Box Company, Limited, pursuant 
the said section; 

(iii) If it be reported that such charge ought not, in eqaity 
d good conscience, to have been imposed and that in equity and 
od conscience the said Maori owners if liable should · not have 
n rendered liable for the repayment of the whole or any part 
the said moneys as aforesaid, then to recommend what further 

m, if any, should now be paid to the said Board by the Crown 
respect of interest moneys and the costs and expenses incurred 
the said Board in defending actions brought against it with 

gard to the payment of the said moneys: 

rovided, further, that you shall be at full liberty to disregard 
fer from any findings, whether of fact or otherwise, conclusions, 
ns, or recommendations of any former tribunal in respect ot 
atters or questions of similar character or im_port to those 

ed to you by these presents : 

nd We do hereby appoint you, the said 
Sir Michael Myers 

Chairman of the said Commission: . 

nd for the better enabling you to carry these presents into 
, you are hereby authorized and empowered to make and 

uct any inquiry under these presents at such times · and places 
ou deem expedient, with power to adjourn from time to- time 
place to place as you think fit, and so that these presents shall 
inue in force, and the inquiry may at any time and place be 

ed although not regularly adjourned from time to time or from 
e to place: 
And you are hereby strictly charged and directed that you shall 
at any time publish or otherwise disclose save to His .Excellency 
Governor-General in pursuance of these _presents, or by His 

ellency's direction, the contents of any report so made or to be 
e by you or any evidence or information obtained by you in the 
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exercise of the powers hereby conferred upon you e:xce 
evidence or information as is received in the course of a sitti 
to the public : 

And you are hereby authorized to report your proceed,in 
:findings under this Our Commission from time to time if y. 
judge it expedient so to do : 

And, using all due diligence, you are required to report 
Excellency the Governor-General in writing under your han 
later than the thirtieth day of June, one thousand nine hundr 
:fifty, your :findings and opinions on the matters ·aforesaid, t 
with such recommendations as you think fit to make in ll 

thereof: · 

And, lastly, it is hereby declared that these presents are i 
under the authority of the Letters Patent of His late Majesty, 
the eleventh da:v of May, one thousand nine hundred and :;eve 
and under the authority of and ::;ubject to the provisions 0 

Commissions of Inquiry Act, 1908, and with the advice and co 
of the Executive Council of the Dominion of New Zealand. , ;'< 

,,V 

In witness whereof We have caused this Our Commission to 
issued and the Seal of Our Dominion of New Zealand to be here · 
affixed at Wellington, this sixth day of December, in the year of 
Lord one thousand nine hundred and forty-nine, and in the thirteen 
year of Our Reign. 

·witness Our Trusty and Well-beloved Sir Bernard Cy 
Freyberg, on whom has been conferred the Victoria Cro 
Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order 
Saint Michael and Saint George, Knight Commander of 0 
~fost Honourable Order of the Bath, Knight Commander 
Our :Most _E~cell~nt ~rder o_f the British_ Empire, Compani~f 
of 0:nr D1stmgmshen Serv1ce Order, Lieutenant-General i.lJ 
Our Army, Governor-General and Commander-in-Chief jn an4 
over Our Dominion of New Zealand and its DependenciesJ 
acting by and with the advice and consent of the Executive­
Council of the said Dominion. 

[L.s.] B. C. FREYBERG, Governor-General. 
B3- His Excellency's Cornmand-

P. FRASER, Minister of Maori Affairs. 

Approved in Council-
T. J. SHERRARD, Clerk of the Executive Council. 
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·-ntment of Another Member of the Royal Commission Const-i­
ted to Inquire Into and Rer)rOrt Upon Claims Preferred by 
ertain Maori Claimants Concerning the Payment of Certain 
oneys by the Aotea District Maori Land Board in Respect 

f the West Taupo Tim_ber Lands 

E THE SIXTH by the Grace of God, of Great Britain, Northern 
eland, and the British Dominions beyond the Seas, King, 
ef ender of the Faith: ' 
o Our Trusty and Well-beloved DouGLAS JAMES DALGLISH_, 

of Wellington, a Deputy Judge of the Court of Arbitration, 
HUBERT MAXWELL CHRISTIE, of Wellington, Company 
Director, and RICHARD ORMSBY, of Te Kuiti, Farmer: 
GREETING: 

EAS by Our Warrant of date the 6th day of December, 1949, 
d under the authority of the Letters Patent of His late Majesty 

the 11th day of May, 1917, and under the Commissions of Inquiry 
1908, and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council, 
ate Sir Michael Myers, a:µd you the said Hubert Maxwell Christie, 
Richard Ormsby were appointed a Commission to inquire into and 
rt upon certain claims pref erred by certain Maoris : 
And whereas the said Sir Michael Myers died after the members 
e Commission had entered upon their la hours but before they 

made any report thereof, and it is desirable to appoint another 
ber and a new Chairman of the said Commission : 

. Now know · ye that We, reposing trust and confidence in your 
artiality, knowledge, and ability· do hereby nominate, constitute 
appoint you, the said 

Douglas James Dalglish, • 
Hubert Maxwell Christie, and 
Richard Ormsby, 

e the Commissioners and members of the said Commission for 
purposes and with the powers and subject to the dir,ections 
ified in the said Warrant : 
And We do hereby appoint you, the said 

Douglas James Dalglish, 
be Chairman of the said Commission : 

And We do hereby confirm the said VI/ arrant and the Commission 
.reby constituted save as modified by these presents. 
· In witness whereof We have caused this Our Commission to 
,issued and the Seal of Our Dominion of New Zealand to be hcre­
o affixed at Wellington, this 26th day of April,. in the year of our 

rd 1950, and in the 14th year of Our Reign. 
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·witness Our Trusty and 1Vell-beloved Sir Berna 
Freyberg, on whom has been conferred the Victor 
Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished 
Saint Michael and Saint George, Knight Command· 
Most Honourable Order of the Bath, Knight Com 
Our Most Excellent Order of the British Empire, c' 
of Our Distinguished Service Order, Lieutenant-G 
Our Army, Governor-General and Commander-in-Chi 
over Our Dominion of New Zealand and its Depe 

_ acting by and with the advice and consent of the E 
Council of the said Dominion. 

[L.s.] B. C. FREYBERG, Governor-Gene 

By His Excellency's Command-
E. B. CORBETT, Minister of Maori Affairs. 

Approved in Council-
T. J. SHERRARD, Clerk of the Executive Council. 

Extending Period Within vVhich the Royal Cornmission Cons 
to Inquire Into and Report Upon Claims Preferred by 
Maori Claim.ants Concern,ing the Payment of Certain M 
by -the Aotea District Maori Land Board in Respect of the 
Taitpo Timber Lands Shall Report 

GEORGE THE SIXTH by the Grace of God, of Great Britain, Nort __ _ 
Ireland, and the British Dominions beyond the Seas, Ki 
Defender of the Faith. '' 
To Our Trusty and ·well-beloved DouGLAS JAMES DALGLI 

of Wellington, a · Deputy .Judge of the Court of Arbitrati 
HUBERT MAXWELL CHRISTIE, of Wellington, Compa 
Director, and RJCHARD ORMSBY, of Te Kuiti, Farme 
GREETING: 

"\VHEftEAS by Our ·warrant of elate the 6th clay of December, 194!¥~ 
issued under the authority of the Letters Patent of His late Majesty 
dated the 11th day of May, 1917, and under the Commissions of Inquiry 
Act, 1908, and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council, 
the late Sir Michael Myers, and you the said Hubert Maxwell Christie, 
and Richard Ormsby, were appointed a Commission to inquire into and 
report upon certain claims pref erred by certain Maoris : 

And whereas the said Sir Michael Mve:rs died after the members 
of the Commission had entered upon th.eir labours but before they 
had made any report thereof, and it was desirable to appoint 
another member of the said Commission : 
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whereas by Our vVarrant of date the 4th May, 1950, you the 
glas James Dalglish, Hubert Maxwell Christie, and Richard 
were appointed to be the Commissioners and members of the 
mission -for the purposes and with the powers· and subject to 

ctions specified in Our said Warrant first hereinbefore 
ed: 

whereas by virtue of Our vV arrant first hereinbef ore 
ed you are required to report not later than the 30th day 
, 1950, your findings and opinions on the inatters therP-by 

to you: 
d whereas it is expedient that the time for so reporting 
ect of the said matters should be extended as hereinafter 
d: 
~, therefore, We do hereby extend until the 31st day of 
er, 1950, the time within which you are so required to 

in respect of the said matters : 
d -vv e do hereby confirm the said Warrants and Commission 
modified by these presents. 
witness whereof We have caused these presents to be issued 
e Seal of Our Dominion of New Zealand to be hereunto 
at \\Tellington, this 28th day of June, in the year of our Lord, 

ousand nine hundred and fifty, and in the fourteenth year of 

itness Our Trusty and Well-beloved Sir Bernard Cyril 
Freyberg, on whom has been conferred the Victoria Cross, 
Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished _ Order of 
Saint Michael and Saint George, Knight Commander of Our 
Most Honourable Order of the Bath, Knight Commander of 
Our Most Excellent Order of the British_. Empire, Companion 
of Our Distinguished Service Order, Lieutenant-General in 
Our Army, Governor-General and Commander-in-Chief in and 
over Our Dominion of New Zealand and its Dependencies, 
acting by and with the advice and consent of the Executive 
Council of the said Dominion. 

[L.s.] B. C. FREYBERG, Governor-General. 

By His Excellency's Command-
E. B. CORBETT, Minister of Maori Affairs. 

Approved in Council-
T. J. ·SHERRARD, Clerk of the Executive Council. 
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E:1:tending Period Within Which the Royal C01nmission 
to Inquire Into and Report Upon Clairns Preferred 
J1aori Clairnants Concerning the Payment of Certain 
the Aotea District Maori Lmnd Board in Respect of 
Taupo Tirnber Lands Shall Report 

G1wRGE THE SIXTH by the Grace of God, of Great Britain 
Ireland, and the British Dominions beyond the S~ 
Defender of the Faith : 
To Our Trusty and \Vell-beloved DouGLAS JAMES 

of Wellington, a Deputy Judge of the Court of Ar 
HUBERT MAXWELL CHRISTIE, of Wellington, 
Director, and RICHARD ORMSBY, of Te Kuiti, 
GREETING: 

WHEREAS by Our Warrant of date the sixth day of Decem 
thousand nine hundred and forty-nine, issued under the auth · 
the Letters Patent of His Late Majesty dated the eleventh day 
one thousand nine hundred and seventeen, and under the Co 
of Inquiry Act, 1908, and with the advice and consent of the Ex 
Council, the late Sir Michael Myers and you the said Hubert 
Christie, and Richard Ormsby, were appointed a C01mnission to · 
into ap.d report upon certain claims pref erred by certain Maor . 

And whereas the said Sir Michael Myers died after the me' 
of the Commission had entered upon their labours but before, 
had made any report thereof, and it was desirable to appoint ano . 
member of the said Commission : 

And whereas by Our VY arrant of date the fourth day of M 
one thousand nine hundred and fifty, you the said Douglas Ja 
Dalglish, Hubert Maxwell Christie, and Richard Ormsby, w 
appointed to be the Commissioners and members of the s 
Commission for the· purposes and with the powers and subj 
to the directions specified in Our said Warrant first hereinbef 
mentioned : 

And whereas by virtue of Our Warrant first hereinbef 
mentioned you were required to report not later than the thirti 
day of June, one thousand nine hundred and fifty, your findings ·a 
opinions on the matters thereby referred to you : 

And whereas by Our further \Varrant of date the twenty-eig 
day of June, one thousand nine hundred and fifty, the time wit 
which you were so required to report was extended until the thir 
first day of December, one thousand nine hundred and fifty : 

And whereas it is expedient that the time for so reporti 
should be further extended as hereinafter provided: 
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w, therefore, We do hereby extend until the thirty-first day 
y, one thousand nine hundred and fifty-one, the time within 
you are so required to report in respect of the said matters ; 
d We do hereby confirm the said Warrants and Commission 
modified by these presents. · 
witness whereof We have caused these presents to be issued · 

he Seal of Our Dominion of New Zealand to be hereunto 
at Wellington, this sixth d!'l,y of ·December, in the year of our 

one thousand nine hundred and fifty, and in the fourteenth year 
r Reign. 
itness Our Trusty and Well-beloved Sir Bernard Cyril 

Frey berg on whom has been conferred the Victoria Cross~ 
Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order of 
Saint Michael and Saint George, Knight Commander of Our 
Most Honourable Order of the Bath, Knight Commander of 
Our Most Excellent Order of the British Empire, Companion 
of Our Distinguished Service Order, Lieutenant-General in 
Our Army, Governor-General and Commander-in-Chief in 
and over Our Dominion of New Zealand and its Dependencies, 
acting by and with the advice and consent of the Executive 
Council of the said Dominion. 

[L.s.J B. C. FREYBERG, Governor-General. 

By His Excellency's Command-
E. B. CORBETT, Minister of Maori Affairs. 

Approved in Council-
T. J. SHERRARD, Clerk of the Executive Council. 

His Excellency the Governor-General, Lieutenant-General the. Right 
Honourable Lord Freyberg, V.C., G.C.M.G., K.C.B:, K.B.E., D.S.O. 

IT PLEASE YouR ExcELLENCY,- • 

1. We have the honour now to make the second report as the result of our 
iries into the four matters specified in Your Excellency's Commission of 
December, 1949, as confirmed in your warrant o:f 26th April, 1950, 
inting the present members of this Commission. Our first report, which 
reference to the Opouturi Block~ was made on 4th December, 1950. This 
nt report relates to claims by certain Maori claimants (members of the 

ti Tuwharetoa Tribe) concerning a sum of £23,500 paid by the Aotea 
rict Maori Land Board to the Egmont Box Co., Ltd., pursuant to section 
of the Maori Purposes Act, 1935, in respect of the West Tau po Tiniber 
ds. 
2. The Commission sat at W anganui to hear representations in respect of 
matter on 12th March, 1951, and on the two following days. Mr. T. P. Cleary 
eared as counsel for the Maori claimants, Mr. N. R. Bain as counsel for the 
wn, and Mr. N. M. Izard as counsel for the Aotea District Maori Land 
rd. 
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3. 'l.'he tel'ms of the order of reference require the Commission 
whether in equity and good conscience the charge imposed on certai 
section 14 of the lVIaori Purposes Act, 1935, should have been impos 
view we al'e called on to determine whether and at what stage an 
done which was unfair to the Maori owners of the lands. We wer 
have regard to certain of the events ·which led up to the paym_e 
£23,500 already referred to and to find that the charge in question s 
have been imposed. In order to give proper consideration to the 
have examined the tvhole of the facts in relation to the transaction 
beginning and have had regard to the circumstances as they existed 
to time. In this report ,ve have not set out all the details in relati 
history of the transaction, but we have set out sufficient to give an 
background for the consideration of the material facts. 

4. The lands affected by the transaction into which we have to in 
referred to as the West 'l'aupo Timber Lands and constitute an 
approximately 134,500 acres lying roughly between Lake Taupo a 
marunui, the nearest point on the North Island Main Trunk Railway 1 
at Kakahi. The area was estimated in 1908 to contain approximately 82 0 
of timber~bearing land, and it was estimated that of this 82,000 a~r 
59,445 acres could be profitably milled. The Crown, through the Nativ 
Purchase Board ( now the Board of Maori Affairs), has since 1920 
substantial interests in these lands by purchase from individual Mao 
now owns approximately two-fifths of the area. The remainder repres 
we were informed, almost the whole of the lands from which the Tuwh 
people derive their living. 

5. In 1906, the Tongariro Timber Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred 
the Tongariro company), entered into an agreement with the majority 
l\:Iaori Qwners of the West Taupo Timber Lands under which the compan 
granted certain timber-cutting rights and under which the company agre 
construct a railway from Kakahi on the Main Trunk Railway line to' 
'1'aupo, a distance of approximately forty miles. This agreement was consi 
by the Maniapoto-Tuwharetoa District Maori Land Board and als:o by 
Royal Commission comprising Sir Robert Stout and Mr. (later Sir) Api 
Ngata. This last-mentioned Commission reported (parliamentary paper 
of 1908) that it was of opinion that the agreement (subject to certain mod 
tions agreed upon) was in the public interest, and, in view of the 
advantages which would accrue to both the Maori owners and the Dom· 
the Commission recommended that Parliament should lend its aid to the 
execution of the agreement with the agreed modifications. It is quite clear 
at this time the proposal that a railway should be constructed was a substa 
factor leading to the approval of the agreement. 

6. Section 37 of the Maori Land Laws Amendment Act, 1908, \ms aeco 
ingly passed authorizing the Maniapoto-Tuwharetoa Maori Land Board 
execute in its own name on behalf of the owners an agreement incorporat 
the terms of the original agreement ·with modifications approved by the Ro 
Commission above referred to. A deed of agreement was accordingly exec­
on 23rd December, 1908. 

7. This deed provided that the railway was to be completed and suppr 
with rolling-stock within a period of five years from the date of the agreerr. 
with a reasonable extension of time if, using all due diligence, the comp 
could not complete within that period. No definite time was fixed within w 
the work of felling and removing the timber was to be commenced and 
pleted, but there was provision for a sliding scale of royalties with what . 
intended to be a prohibitive royalty of £100 per acre after the expiry of fi 
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'he deed also provided that, whether any timber was felled or nott 
ms should be paid annually in anticipation of royalties, and the 
default by the Tongariro company, could cancel and determine the 

out being liable, if the cancellation took place after 1923, to repay any 
neys received by the Board. 
n 1st July, 1910, the Aotea District Maori Land Board was constituted 

e the successor to the Maniapoto-'l'uwharetoa Board in respect of the 
·u which the West Taupo Timber Lands were situated. The Aotea 
us stepped into the shoes of the Maniapoto-Tuwharetoa Board in 

of this transaction. 
ection 37 of the Maori Land Laws Amendment Act, 1908, also provlded 
agreement could be modified at any time by mutual agreement of the. 

but that the approval of the Native Minister to any such modification 
be obtained. Iii 1910 the Tongariro company asked the Aotea. Distrfot 
and Board to agree to a modification of the agreement. The Board. 
pecial meeting on 9th December, 1910, to consider the application, and 

meeting the Maoris were represented by Messrs. Skerrett and Fell. Mr. 
t said that he accepted the responsibility of advising the Maoris that 
ifications proposed were advantageous to them. Te Heu'heu Tukino, 

f of the Ngati Tuwharetoa, and other Maoris were present and, exce'.[>t 
ases, they were in agreement. 11he modifications were agreed to. They 
a reduction of the royalty payment and also an extension d time for 

pletion of the railway. As regards the railway, the date for completion 
tponed until 1st March, 1916 . 

. Even with the concessions granted to it, the Tongariro company stiH 
it impracticable to do anything, and it approached the Aotea District 
Land Board again. A further agreement was made between the Board 
e Tongariro company on 24th October, 1913. Under this agreement the 
y ,vas given the right to construct the first five miles of the railway 
have the timber-cutting rights over the Whangaipeke · Block and certain 

nt land as a separate undertaking, and the rights in respect of that land 
ot to be liable to cancellation or forfeiture for default with respect to 
er lands affected by the previous agreements. In addition, the Tongariro 
y was granted immunity from cancellation or forfeiture conditional upon 

st section of the railway being comJl].enced by ~2nd October, 1915,, and 
completed by 22nd October, 1916. Before the modifications in this 
ent of 24th October, 1913, werw agreed to by the Board it heard repre­

ions from counsel for Maori owners as well as from individual owners. 
1. On 9th September, 1914, the Tongariro company entered into a contract 
the Egmont Box Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the Egmont 
any), whereby the Egmont company covenanted that it would provide all 
oneys necessary for constructing or would, as contractor for the Tongariro 
ny, construct the first five miles of railway in two secti-0ns, the first 

n to be constructed within two and a half years and the other within four 
The Egmont company was to obtain running-rights over the line, which 

uired for the exercise of timber-cutting rights which it had on adjoining 
. The Aotea District Maori Land Board was requested to consent ~o the 
of this agreement, but declined to do so unless it was directed o:i: author­

by statute. The Egmont company petitioned Parliament askiug that 
tive sanction be given to the agreement, and the Native Affairs Committee • 
mended that the petition be referred to the Government for favourallle 

deration (parliamentary paper I-3 of 1914, p. 10). Section 5 of the Natiye 
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Land Claims Adjustment Act, 1914, was passed as a result. 
validated the agreement and provided that in the event of any lo 
surrender, or abandonment of rights by the Tongariro company, 
the Egrnont company under the agreement should not be prejudic 
'rhe section also provided that the Egmont company should c 
subject to its unfulfilled obligations under the agreement whic 
enforceable by the Aotea District Maori Land Board, and that 
•eompany should have against the Board and against the Native 0 
Whangaipeke Block and certain adjacent land all the rights confe 
Egrnont company by the agreement. In explaining the legislation t 
of Repre1oentatives, the Hon. Mr. Berries, the then Native Minister 
the only effect it might have on th~ Tongariro company was with i/ 
-extension of time to make their railway. He pointed out that if t 
did not have an extension of time the :Maori Land Board might de 
leases and the :Maoris would get possession of the land again, but it 
:impossible for any company to finance a railway of five miles by de 
any other method. He stated that he thought that the arrangem 
the best interests of both companies and of the Maoris, and also of the 
.at large because the big stands of bush would be worked. In reply to 
by Mr. Young (who at that time was Chairman of the Native A 
mittee) as to whether the Maoris approved of the extension, the Mi 
·"Yes" (1914 Jfonsard, Yol. 171, p. 787). 

12. On 23rd Octolier, 1919, the Tongariro company entered into 
.agreement with the Egmont company whereby the Tongariro comp 
to sell the timber on the Whangaipeke Block to the Egmont compan 
Egmont company was to advance to the Tongariro company all th 
necessary for the construction of the five miles of railway from Kak 
account of and in advance of the royalties the Egrnont company was t 
the Tongariro company the sum of £15,000 and thereafter £6,000 p~ 
for seven years. Section 32 of the Native Land Amendment and Nat" 
Claims Adjustment Act, 1919, empowered the Governor in Council to 
.and consent to any agreement made or to be made between the two co 
provided the trustee for certain debenture-holders of the Tongariro c 
and the Aotea District Maori Land Board consented thereto. On such a 
and consents being obtained the agreement was to be valid and bindin 
receive the same protection as that given to the 1914 agreement by sec 
the Native Land Claims Adjustment Act, 1914. 

13. Section 32 of the 1919 Act did not in itself give effect to the a 
which had been entered into, but it enabled the Governor in Council to 
to any agreement after it had been approved by the Maori Land Boar 
.agreement of 23rd October, 1919, was brought before the Board 
November, 1919. The minute-book of the Board (Vol. 12, folio 79) sho 
'fe Heuheu Tukino appeared at the proceedings with Hira Te Akau and 
Te Akau to represent the Native owners, and records that the followin 
ment was made by Te Heuheu Tukino: '' We have come to support the agr 
between the 'rongariro company and the Box company. One advantage 
railway.'' The Board, and subsequently the Governor in Council, approv 
agreement. Subsequently the debenture-holders who had refused their c 
to the agreement were paid off out of a new debenture issue guaranteed 
Egrnont company and the prior agreement of 1914 was cancelled. The E 
company subsequently was called upon to pay £25,000 in respect of its gu 
of these debentures. 



13 G-1 

he 1'ights of the Egmont company from 1919 onwards were governed 
ly by the 1919 agreement. In view of the fact that the £23,500 in 
in these proceedings was paid in settlement of claims by the Egmont · 
arising out of this agreement, it is necessary to refer to its main 

s. Briefly put,· the main provisions were these :-
(a) The Tongariro company s.old to the Egmont company all the 
r trees on Western Division A (being the Whangaipeke Block), with 
·ght to make roads, &c., the right to extend until 31st December, 1959 .. 
(b) The Egmont company was to pay a royalty of 3s. per 100 super-
feet, sawn measurement ( estimated total, 69,000,000 ft.). 

( c) The Egmont company was to pay £15,000 immediately and th~re­
£6,000 a year for seven years on account and in advance of royalties, 

first of such annual payments to be made after the first five miles of 
•av were built. 
( d) The 'l'ongariro company was to build five miles of railway from 

ahi Railway-station within two years, the Egmont company to advance· 
moneys for construction, the moneys to be repaid within i:Mven years. 

interest at 6 per cent. 
( e) All moneys expended by the Egmont company under the 1914 
ement, amounting (with interest to 30th June, 1919) to £4,234, were· 
e deemed to have been expended under the terms of the 1919 agreement 
to be repayable with interest at 6 per cent. as therein provided. 
U) 'rhe Egmont company on default by the Tongariro company 

ld elect to complete the construction of the first five miles of railway 
1f and on so constructing and completing it could recover the cost from 
Tongariro company . 

. Following this agreement the history of the West Taupo Timber Lands­
next ten years is a story of efforts made. to find finance to keep the-

· ro company afloat. Negotiations for the bringing-in of English capital 
ost successful on more than one occasion. Meanwhile further extensions­

for the construction of the railway ·were granted and the specifications. 
ilway construction were varied from time to time. .At first the royalty 
ts due by the Tongariro company under its agreement were brought up· 
from time to time, sums amounting to £48,428 15s. being paid during· 

iod October, 1920, to March, 1926, but by the 1;/eginning of 1927 the 
iro company was again in arrears with the payments and there was no 
the resumption of the railway construction which had been begun but 
sed before the completion of the first five miles. 

. Steps were accordingly commenced by the Aotea District 1\l[aori Land 
with a view to cancelling the agreement with the 'l'ongariro company and 
Maoris petitioned Parliament asking that no further extensions of time· 
ted and that the owners be permitted to r,ecover possession of their land. 

ative Affairs Committee recommended that no extension be granted after 
1d of" March, 1928 (parliamentary paper I-3 of 1927, p. 12). Further­
'ations took place over the next two years, and in October, 1929, the whole 

·was referred to the Native Affairs Committee of the House of Repre­
ives. That Committee duly reported (parliamentary paper I-3A of 1929), 
ection 29 of the Native Land Amendment and Native Land Claims 

ent Act, 1929, was passed to give effect to the Committee's recommenda-
Pursuant to that legislation the Aotea District Maori Land Board 

led the agreement with the Tongariro company early ·in 1930. 
7. Under the agreement the total amount paid on account of royalties.up 
s date was £53,553 15s. · The amount of timber cut during the whole period 
sented royalties amounting to approximately £10,800. 
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. 18. From mm until the cancellation of the agreement with the 
eomp:1ny the steps ,Yh~ch were t':"ken var:ying the requirements as to th 
of railway and grantmg extensions of time were all taken, so far as 
and the Government of the day were concerned, with a view to se 
best interests of the Maori owners and it is not necessary to exam' 
detail the transactions which took place in connection with the w 
Timber Lands during that period. 'l'he 1929 report of the Nati 
Committee referred to in the last preceding paragraph sets out the 
this period and also contains a considerable amount of detailed in 
concerning the whole of the transaction up to that time. 

19. By virtue of the provisions of the 1914 and 1919 legislation the 
tion of the agreement between the Tongariro company and the Board 
affect the 1919 agreement between the Tongariro company and the 
company, except that the 'l'ongariro company's place was taken by the 

20. 'l'he position of the 'l'ongariro company and of the Egmont 
was examined by the Native Affairs Committee of the House of Repi·es 
in 1930, and that Committee reported ;;hat it ·was of opinion that the 
company had legal rights to the Western A Block ("V\Thangaipeke Bl 
that these should be defined by legislati011 or by a fresh agreement 
mentary paper I-3A of 1930). Section 18 of the Native Land Amend 
Native Land Claims Adjustment Act, 1930, was passed to giYe effect 
report. By it the Board, acting as agent for the owners, was a•ith 
~mpowered, and directed to enter into a contract with the Egmont co 
respecting the timber on the lands and the other matters referred to in th 
agreement. 'l'he contract was to incorporate such of the terms and prov 
of the Hl19 agreement as the Board and the company should mutually 
upon and such other terms as the Board might reasonably require. If 
was any dispute concerning the terms and conditions, the Natiye Mini,,ter 
-decide it, but if the company ,ms dissatisfied with the .1\Iinister 's dec1si 
could decline to execute the contract, the parties being left to their dghts 
obligations under the Hl19 agreement. If for any reason the contract was 
entered into within nine months from the commencement of the Act, the r 
of the Egmont company to obtain the contract ·was to cease and determine, 
the Governor-General in Council might extend the period for such time a 
thought proper. 

21. Negotiations ,rnre accordingly entered into bet,veen the Eg 
-company and the Board with a view to entering into a new agreement, and 
parties first endeavoured to arrive at some definite understanding as to 
nature and extent of the Board's liability to the Egmont company under 
1919 agreement and the legislation in relation thereto. At a conference on 
May, 1931, the Egmont company claimed that it was entitled to be paid a su 
of £46,806, made up as follmvs :-

F01· raihvav construction 
Interest the;eon to 31st March, 1931 
Debenture issue (i.e., amount paid under guarantee) 
Interest thereon to 25th January, 1931 

£ 
11,594 

7,752 
25,000 
2,460 

£46,806 

In addition, as the Egmont company had paid £15,000 as advance royalties a 
had up to this stage cut timber from the Whangaipeke Block to the value 
'Only £10,798 Gs. 6d., there was a sum of £4,201 13s. 6d. also outstanding 
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of royalties paid in advance. There ,vas no dispute as to the liability 
s last-mentioned amount, but there was a substantial dispute as to. the 

of the Board in respect of the other amounts . 
. At this conference the Board contended that whatever was owing 
Egmont company was secured on the royalties which would be derived 
the Whangaipeke Block and that if, therefore, the timber on the 

ipeke Block was insufficient to meet the amount, then the compft,hy 
lose to that extent. This aspect of the matter was left in abeyance wl1ile 
angles were discussed with a view to seeing how close the parties could 
a settlement. The Egmont company indicated that it was willing to . 
£30,000 in satisfaction of its claim, provided the amount was paid within 
nable time and not left to be satisfied out of the Whangaipeke royalties. 
oard, on the other hand, offered £26,000 in full settlemeht, to he paid out 
Whangaipeke royalties as they were received. It was clear that if the 

t fixed in satisfaction of the Egmont company's claim had to come out 
angaipeke royalties alone and had to be paid as those royalties were 

ed, the Egmont company was not prepared to come to any Pettlement. 
arties were unable to get closer to an agreement than this, and it was 
ore suggested on behalf of the Board that the matter should be left to the 
to settle in accordance with the provisions of the 1930 legislation. It is 

ed by Mr. vV. A. Izard, solicitor for the Board, and by Judge Browne, 
resident of the Board, who conducted the negotiations on behalf of the 
, that Mr. Murdoch, manager of the company, said that the company· did 
ropose to go to the Court, but would adopt other means of · getting its 
satisfied. We think that we should say immediately that we have found 

1 idence which indicates any improper approach by the Egmont company 
a view to securing a more satisfactory settlement than it would otherwise 
got. It appears, however, that at this time and at all times subsequently 
ompany sought to obtain settleme'llt by negotiation and was not prepared 
rce the position by taking Court proceedings to obtain satisfaction of its 
s. 

23. Following this conference on 1st May, 1931, various discussions took 
between interested parties, and the time :for the completion of a new 

act under section 18 of the Native Land Amendment and Native Land 
s Adjustment Act, 1930, was extended from time to time. 'rhe clain;i.,; 

e Egmont company varied from time to time ~nd the views of the legal 
ser to the Board as to the liability of the Board to the Egmont company 
ar to have changed from time to time. At one time there was a suggestion 
there should be a substantial payment to the Egmont company by the 

ernment, and Cabinet actually approved of a payment, but the matter was 
brought to finality. It is not necessary to traverse all these matters in 
il in this report as, in our opinion, nothing turns on them: It is necessary, 
ver, to examine closely what took place in 1934 and 1935. 
24. In May, 1934, following an interview with representatives of the 
ont company, the Minister of Finance referred the matter to the Native 

d Settlement Board constituted under the Native Land Amendment Act, 
2. 'l'he matter came before that Board in August, 1934, and that Bo~rd 
ointed a sub-committee to investigate and make recommendations. The 
committee consisted of Messrs. Rodda ( of the Treasury) and Per.:rce 
der-Secretary, Native Department) and Judge Browne (President o:f the 
ea Distri13t Maori Land Board). . 
25. This sub-committee held a meeting on 25th October, 1934, which was 

nded by Mr. W. A. Izard, solicitor for the Aotea District Maori Land Board, 
d by representatives o:f the Egmont company. The representatives o:f the 
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E..,,m0 nt company, relying on previous negotiations, intimated that f 

p;;,pared to accept £29,000 plus £4,201 13s. 6d. Mr. V{. A. Izard p~·' 
that there had been no agreement on the part of the Aotea Board 
thou~ht that negotiations should begin anmv. When the. Board had ;0 
previously agreed to offer £29,000 plus £4,201 13s. 6d., 1t was with a 
facilitating purchase of the timber by the Government and the payme 
to l!e made out of royalties. _After an adjournment to enable the pa' 
confer among themselves, the Egmont company's representati-ves advi ·. 
they ,mm prepared to accept £27,000 in cash in full settlement of their 
}fr. Izard, on behalf of the Aotea Board, made a counter-offei· of £17 50 
but after eonsiderable (fo,tussion he incr,msed the offer to £:20,000. ' 

26. A further meeting o:I' the sub-committee with the 1·epresentatives .­
parties was held on Hith No-vember, 1!)34. After a considerable amo 
discussion, the company's representatives were asked if they ·would ma 
offer of £:23,500, a figure which subsequently increased to £23,750. 'l'hey 0 
to accept £24,500, but said that they had no power to go beloYv it. I 
arranged, however, that they would consult the company's directors and a: 
}fr. Peal'ce, the Under-Secretary of the Native Department, whether' 
eompany would make an offer to accept that amount. On 21st November ' 
the :-;olicitors to .the Egmont company wrote to the Under-Secretary ~ 
NatiYe Department stating that they had been instructed to make an off 
the Aotea District Maori Land Boa1·d, strictly without prejudice, to acce 
payment of £23,750 in cash together ·with certain railway and bridge mate 

27. Mr. W. A. Izard, the solicitor to the Aotea District Maori Land Bo 
adxised that Board that the offer should be rejected and that the ou 
amount which should be paid was £20,000, but that an offer to pay £20,000 
the cancellation of the agreement shonld be subject to confirmation by 
Forestry Department that the timber on Whangaipeke Block was worth: 
least 3s. per 100 ft. royalty all over. There was, however, no final reject 
of the Egmont company's offer, and an extension of time for acceptance 
ananged by the Under-Secretary of the Na_tfre Department with the Egm 
c·ompany. On 26th Febrnary, 1935, the Aotea Board advised the Un 
Secl'etar,v that as a trustee it had no option but to act in conformity with 
f:'olicitor's advice, which was that the limit the Board would be justified 
paying was £20,000, and then only if there was a certificate from the Pores 
Department that the timber on the ·whangaipeke Block would be wortl: 
rnyalty of at least 3s. per 100 ft. all ,rver and that there was timber on 
block worth at least, at that royalty, the amount of £20,000. This noti:ficat 
of refusal was duly communicated to the solicitors for the Egmont company. 

28. On 14th :March, 1935, }fr. Pearce, the Under-Secretary of the Nat 
Department, reported to the Native Minister in writing concerning 
negotiations with the Egmont company. The letter stated:-

:\1esRrs. Rodda of the '11reasmy, J uclge Browne of the Maori Land Board and I w 
deputed by the Native Land Sett1ement Board to meet the Company representatives 
several diseussions took place until finally the sum of £23,750 appeared to be .111ore or 1 
agreef1 upon a~ a reasonable sum to pay to the Company for the cancellation of 
rights. It ,rns left to the Company to submit. a de:flnite offer in writing at this :figure _wh 
the Aotea Board conld aeeept or rejeet. Ho,Yever, when the written offer was received it 
found that the Cornp:my had introclueed a new factor in that it desired to retain cert 
tramlines ·which hacl already been laid. 

The Company's offer· was duly conveyed to the Aotea Board, but it msisted u 
certificates being obtained from tlie Forestry Department to the effect that the royalty v 
of the timber on the block averaged at least 3s. per 100 feet, and that a sufficient quant. 
of timber existed to defray the cost of settlement plus interest for a restricteu period. 
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cates could not be obtained without making careful appraisements of the timli6r 
take months to carry out, there was no option but to inform the Company that 

d not be accepted. 
d be a great pity if the negotiations which have progressed so far :i,nd favourably, 

to brertk down at this juncture. The Egmont Box Company is extremely anxious 
f its Tights for a cash consideration and is making a big sacrifice at the figure 

its offer. It states that its unrecouped expenditure to date is over £40,000 and 
roerly agreed to accept £33,000 through the then Native Minister (part in cash 
instalments over a period of years) it felt that that was the limit to which it 

The Native owners who eventually have to find the money to pay to the Gompany 
hardship, but they are both legally and morally bound to make some payment and 
umstances I think the sum of £23,750 is reasonable. The tramline already laid 
e Whakapapa River and Te Rena should be transferred to the Board and be 
the £23,750. 
Government is disposed to settle with the Company, power will have to ,be taken 

on, preferably this Session. The Company's Solicitor considers this is unnecessary 
ot agree and in any case provision must be made to enable the Aotea Board to 
land with the sums advanced by it on behalf of the owners. 

ompany has verbally agreed to its previous offer of the 21st November, 1934, 
open to the Government until the encl of the present month. Tire Native Land 
Board has not hacl an opportunity of considering the latest developments in the 

s and is therefore unable to submit a recommendation. Mr. Rodda, however, 
th me in reco=ending: 
1) That the Government intervene and settle with the Egmont Box Company for 
O for the complete cancellation of its rights-the Company to retain the loose 

material but to cede the tramlines already laid. 
) That the Government pass the necessary empowering legislation. 
) That the Aotea Board continue to act as agent for the Native owners in all 

cts as if the settlement had been arranged, and agreed to, by it. 

The Native Minister on 15th March directed that legislation should be 
d accordingly, and on 27th March, 1935, the Egmont company was 
that the Native Minister had decided to intervene and fix the amount 
as £23,750, this to be for the whole of the company's rights /,J,Hd interests 
, &c., incidental to the timber, but not to include loose rails and bridging 
• acquired by the company and not built into position. The legislation 
g for the settlement was passed on 5th April, 1935, being section 10 
·uance Act, 1934-35. . 

· Following on this there were some discussions between representatives 
Treasury and the Egmont company concerning the adjustment of the 
y reducing it. to £23,500, the company to take over more of the railway 
dge material than had originally been intended.• It would appear that 
ement on the figure £23,500 was made in the course of a discussion 
the general manager of the Egmont company and the Treasury on 

Y., 1935. Following on this the Egmont company had discussions: with 
ident and the solicitor of the Aotea District Maori Land Board concern­
ain detailed matters. In due course, on 13tn June, 1935, the, Egmont 

completed a formal -offer to accept £23,.500 from the Aotea Board for 
se and diseharg~ of the Board and the Native owners from all claims had 

s arising out of the agreement between the Tongariro company and the 
t company dated 23rd October, 1919, and the company gave certain 
kings with regard to collateral matters. On 21st June, 1935, the 
Minister approved of the sum of £23,500 to be paid by the Aotea District 
Land Board· to the Egmont Box Co. in accordance with the offer made 

company. . 
. Settlement was effected as between the Aotea Board and the Egmont 
ny on ·25th June, 1935, by payment of a sum of £23,300 to the company, 
maining. £2.00 being paid over on 3rd December, 1935, when cer.tain 
rs oLillort~~ which had to be completed by the company were handed 
the Board's solicitors, • 
G-1 
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32. Before the payment had actually been made the President 
Board had raised questions concerning section 10 o:£ the Finance 
stating that it did not carry out what had really been intended 
Board had consistently contended that it should have as security :fo. 
which the Board agreed or was directed to pay to the companv a 
the whole of the lands affec~ed by t!1e 'l'ongariro. company's agr 
that the charge ,vas to be agamst the mterests acqmred by the Cro · 
the interests retained by the Maoris. The reason for this was th 
received by the Aotea Board from the Tongariro company by wa 
wet·e paid to the owners of all the blocks in the West Tau po Tim 
proportion to the estimated quantity of timber in each block. Secti 
1934-35 Act, by making the amount to be paid to the Egmont com 
to all intents and purposes was a refund of portion o:£ the royalti 
a charge against the Whangaipeke Block and a certain limited a· 
alone, had imposed a grave injustice on the owners of those sub 
freeing the owners o:£ the other blocks from any liability. Certain 

. we1·e also raised, and before the payments were made the Board 
an assurance that the points raised by it would be provided for i 
legislation. Section 14 of the Maori Purposes Act, 1935, was p 
effect to thiR undertaking. It replaced section 10 of the Finance A 
and ,ms ante-dated so as to come into force on the date when the F 
1934-35 had been passed. The payment of the amom1t of £23,500 
to be regarded as having been made in pursuance of the provisions of 
of the Maori Purposes Act, 1935, and in this report we have referr 
having been made under that section. 

33. Very Rhortly after payment had been made to the Egmon 
the representatives of the Maori owners claimed that the payment 
improperly made, and Court proceedings were commenced by Hoan:i 
Tukino in his representative capacity as chief of the Ngati Tuwhar. 
claimed that there had been negligence on the part of the Board in 
obtain from the Court directions as to the legal liability (if any) of 
or the Maori owners to the Egmont· company. He made certain~ 
in respect of negligence and breach of duty and he also claimed 
requiring the Board to indemnify the Maori owners and their lands 
payment of £23,500 or any part thereof. The plaintiff was un 
these proceedings, the Court holding that the Board was under no 1 
doing what it was required to do by Act of Parliament. He faile 
appeal in the Court of Appeal and in the Privy Council, [1939] N.Z. 
[1941] N.Z.L.R. 590. 

34. We are now called upon to consider whether in equity 
conscience the owners of the West Taupo Timbe1' Lands should be r 
pay the whole or any part of the £23,500 and costs and interest as re 
in section 14 of the Maori Purposes Act, 1935. 

35. Mr. Cleary, counsel for the Tuwharetoa people, submitted . 
origin of the whole of their claim rested in the legislation passed in 191 
1919. But £or that legislation the Aotea Board would have been u .. 
liability to the Egmont company. The provisions of the legislation Qf 1 
1919 reached their culmination in the legislation passed in 1935. He, 
out that the legislation of 1914 appeared to go beyond what was aske. 
the petition and that there existed no documentary or other evide , 
would justify the Minister in saying that the Maoris had approv~d .. 
lation. · frobably all that they had approved was the eX.tension of time,; 
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that in 1914 ( and the same could be said £or the position in 1919) 
contemplated that the railway would be built and nobody contem­

t twenty years later when the Egmont company invoked the legislation 
would not have been completed. 

r. Cleary put the question which we have to consider as being, " Is it 
that the Maoris should assume all or any of the obligations which the 

company had incurred towards its sub-concessionaire, the Egmont 
1 '' In the course of his submissions he pointed out that both the 
company and the 'l'ongariro company must be looked at as commercial 
ings engaged in commercial enterprise. In the case of the Tongariro 
, it had speculated for an enormous profit with wholly inadequate 

hile agreeing that the Maoris had received substantial sums between 
1930 he emphasized that they had had their lands completely tied up 

ty-five. years or more, during which time they were prevented from 
any revenues from the land. Mr. Cleary, in conclusion, examined in 
e discussions which had taken place during the negotiations following 
ellation of the Tongariro agreement in 1930. He claimed that the 
n of 1914 and 1919 "unconsciously and unintentionally" imposed 
r burden on the Maoris, and finally in 1935, by Ministerial intervention, 

was required to make a cash payment contrary to the opinions of the 
-General and of the Board's solicitor as to the rights of the Egmont 

We consider that, having regard to the circumstances as they existed in 
d again in 1919, the legislation that was passed in 1914 

HJ ,vith reference to the agreements between the Egmont com­
d the Tongariro company was fair and reasonable. In 1914 and in 
rybody contemplated the construction of th.e railway, and when every-

looking forward to the construction of this railway and expecting that 
be constructed it was fair enough to say that if the railway or even a 

of it were built with money provided by the Egmont company and the 
cancelled the agr.eement with the Tongariro company, then the Maoris 
not have the benefit of the Egmont company's expenditure without 
ensing that company. That much was admitted by Mr. Cleary. In 1935 
dy knew not only that the railway had not been l;,uilt, but that it never 
be built; and Mr. Cleary, speaking for the Maoris, said "our whole 
int really is that the Minister and the Legislature applied the rights given 
legislation of 1914 and 1919, when everybody expected the railway to be 
o a wholly changed position and state of affairs in 1935, when no one 
d the railway to be built, and everybody knew there would be no 
" 
'l'he legislation passed in 1929 authorized the cancellation of the 

ent between the Aotea Board and the . Tongariro company, and the 
tion of 1930 was passed with a view to having timber-cutting continued 
a new agreement which was to be substituted for the Egmont company's 
ent of 23rd October, 1919, and the parties were left to their remedies 
that agreement and the 1914 and 1919 legislation only if it was not possible 
elude. a fresh satisfactory agreement. The 1930 legislation seems to us 
e been fair and reasonable, but the legislation of 1935 departed from the 
ple of leaving the parties to their legal remedies. We have come to the 
e conclusion that in intervening in the negotiations between the Aotea 
and the Egmont company and in taking steps under which the Board 

equired and directed to pay the sum of £23,500 to the Egmont company 
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iu c;i:::ih tL'. ~ettle that company\-; c!airn::; aga!nst _the A_otea Bo'.3,r_d, the Go" 
acted unfairly towards the .i\laor.1 owners m vie,Y of the opunon of the 
i,oli~i~or as to the Board's liability and in view of his opinion: ,Yith w 
Sohc1tor-General has agreed, aH to the Egmont company's l'lght of l' 

being limited to future royaltie::;. H the Egmont company had been left 
satisfaction of itH claims by Court prnceedings on :foiling to obtain a ~et 
by negotiation, there could harn been no reasonable complaint by th 
owners. 

39. It i:,: cleal' that in any such Uourt proceedings the Egmont c 
might have been :,:ucces:,:ful in obtaining a declaration that a much 
8Um. than £23,500 was o-wing to it. On the other hand, a much lower 
might have been :fL.-:ed. The only liability actually admitted by Mr. vY. A. 
bis last opinion 1Ya8 for £4,201 J:1B. Gd. on account of advance royaltie~- h 
liability for any debenture moneys and had grave doubts about t~e r 
moneys. ]j'urthermore, most of, iJ' not all, the moneys likely to he foun 
owing to the Egmout company would have to be got from the royalties ob 
from the future cutting of timber on the ,Vhangaipeke Block, and this 
might limit the amount actmilly recovered by the Egmont company 
amount much less than the amount found to be owing to it. Several 
during the negotiation:,: we fo1d it. on record that this was stres:,:ed on be 
the .Aotea Board. For example, this was done at the conference b 
repre:,:e11tath;e8 of the parties on 1st May, 1931, to ,Yhich ·we 1w,e a 
referred. .Again, on 14th .August, Hl34, in a memorandum to the 
~~ecretary o:l' the Native Department, the President of the .Aotea Boal'd sai 

So far as the Board is concerned, it does not hold itself bound by anything 
ha}_)pened in the past negotiations for ,m agreement. It has consistently taken 
r,ttitm1e that (tny money agreed. to be paiu to the Company in satisfaction of its claim 
come from \Vhangaipeke royalties as they were received by it. The Company wa 
8ubshmtial payment in ca.sh, hut it wns given eleady to unc1erstanc1 that the Board 
fomls out o:f ·which such a payment could be made. 

On this unclerstimcling it is quite pr,epared to renew negotiations with the Egmo 
Company, hut :i,s stateil in a previous memorandum it considers it woulcl hP- muc 
RntiBfH-<•tory i:f the claims could be settled by a Court. 

40. Having regard to the whole of the circumstances of the negoti 
which had taken place and having carefully considered the legal position 
W. A. Izard, the solicitor to the .Aotea Board, in a letter to the Board date 
Nornrn.be1·, 1934, dealing ·with the Egmont company's offer to accept £ 
upon certain terms, said-

( u) M.y mrn view is that the Natives' interests would be best senred by the _ 
Cou1pan~· being left to its legal remedies to ascertain the amount for which it 1s enti 
eredit aga.inst J"oyalties payable in respect of the timber on vVestern Divisions A and. 
tlw.t the Egmont Company should. he left to wol'k out its own salvation by cutting the 
:Crom these Blocks. 

ln the al.ter1rntive, i:f the Board prefers not to resort to law, then: 
(/!) I advise payment o:f not more than £20,000 at the outside to 

but upon the following terms: 
(1) That the offer be subject to confirmation by the Forestry Department that 

lcirnber 011 "\Vlrnngaipe~e is worth at least 3s. per 100 feet royalty all over. 
(2) That the Egmont Company hanc1 over to the Board a registered first mo 

over and the otherwise unencumbered. title to the lands in the Taurewa Block con 
10 acres more or less being the lands on which the present railway is built :fr 
Whalmpapa River to the "\V,mgmrni River at Te Rena. 

( 3) That the Egmont Company procure an assignment to the Board of the 
rights of the Tongarii-o Company from Kakahi Railway Station to the 1:tnd men 
in clause (2) hereof. 

( 4) That authority be given by Statute to the Boanl to pay such £20,000 an 
whole agreement he thereby confirrnecl. 
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of this letter was sent to the Under-Secretary of the Native Affairs 
1ent, and was on the files of that Department when the Under-Secretary 

o the Native lVIinister on 14th lVIarch, 1935, and with the concurrence of 
da, of the 'rreasury, recommended that the Government intervene and 

ith the Egmont company for £23,750 ( which sum, as already mentioned, 
er reduced to £23,500). We consider that greater attention should have 
aid to the opinion of the Aotea Board's solicitor . 
. A Conservator of Forests who was asked to report on the .timber on the 

gaipeke Block expressed the opinion that for the timber on the Whangai­
lock an average royalty of 3s. per 100 ft. was reasonable, but he could 

mmit his Department in regard to the quantity of millable timber without 
airing a cruise of 10 per cent. of the area. This was not proceeded with 
e of the cost. It is clear, however, from subsequent appraisements that 
was sufficient timber on the Whangaipeke Block to cover £20,000 and 
st for several years. The second and third conditions laid down by Mr. 

in his letter of 24th November, 1934, relate to minor matters, and 
izing legislation was, of course, duly enacted. 

2. As we have already said, we consider that the Government acted 
ly towards the Maori owners in intervening and directing the Board to 
23,500 to the Egmont company. In our opinion, the owners oi the West 
o 'rimber Lands (including the Crown, in respect of the interests owned 
e Crown) can fairly be said to have had debited to them as a loan under 
n 14 of the Maori Purposes Act, 1935, £3,500 more than should have been 
ited (being the difference between £20,000 and the amount actually paid-­

ly, £23,500). We consider that the Crown should accordingly pay the sum 
,500 to the Board, in reduction of the loan-moneys referred to in subsection 
f the said section 14. 
3. In accordance with the said s_~ction 14, the costs and expenses incurred 
e AotBa Board have been added to the amount paid to the Egmont 
any and the whole sum treated as a loan by the Board to r.he owners 
ding the Crown) of the West Tanpo Timber Lands. We consider that 

·s right and proper. The Aotea Board has also paid a sum of £1,921 6s. 
osts in connection with the action by Hoani Te Heuheu Tukino,, and this 
has been re'duced by £499 7s. 6d. costs awarded by the Court to the Board 
paid by the unsuccessful plaintiff. The net amouflt of £1,421 18s. 6d. has 
treated as part of the loan under subsection (2) of the said section 14. 
seems to us to be a proper action on the part of the Board. We consider, 
ver, that as the unsuccessful plaintiff and the people he represented were 

uring under a sense of injustice which we have found to have been, in part 
east, reasonable, the Crown should pay a sum of £750 in reduction of the 
of £1,421 18s. 6d. above referred to. In fixing this amount of £750 we have 
regard to the fact that the plaintiff would have paid a considerable sum 

his own costs, but we can see no justification for the matter having been 
n to the Privy Council. 
44. Interest is being charged on the loan account at the rate of 3 per cent. 
annum, and such payments in reduction of the capital liability in that 
unt as are made in accordance with the recommendations in the last two 
eding paragraphs should have added to them interest at the rate of 3 per 
. per annum for the same period as that for which interest has been charged 
he Aotea Board on the capital sum in respect of which the payment is made. 
45. By paragraph (b) of subsection (2) o:f section 14 of the Maol'i Purposes 

t, 1935, the Aotea Board is given a charge, as security for repayment of the 
n account and interest, over so much of the West Taupo Timber Land as is 
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not owned by the C1·mY11. It is dear, however, from paragraph (,a) 
subsection and from the other provisions of tho said section 14 that it 
that tho Crown, as an owner of portion of tho landJ:l, shall bear its f 
the loan account and intereJ:it, and it was agreed by Mr. Bain, on b 
Crown, that the Crowu 's proportion J:ilwuld be ascertained by the 
l'eferred to in 1::1ubsection (3) of the said 1::1ection. Bearing that in mi 
ol' opinion that it ii,; fai.r and reasonable that the charge i 
paragraph (b) of subsection (2) should be so imposed, provided th 
eapital liability under the loan account is reduced by the paym 
amounts of £3,500 and £750 already refened to and the liability fo 
under the loan account is reduced to the extent of interest on thos 
as already mentioned. 

46. Mr. Cleary informed us that a:,; bet1Yeen the Maori owners of 
blocks in the West 'l'aupo 'l'imber Lands they are all ou the same foot 
the charge. 'I'he apportionment of liability as between the various 

· land is a matter for the Commission under subsection (3) of the saids 

47. We have been informed that the Aotea Board has retained in i 
portioni,; of certain moneys which have been received by it for the .o 
Yarious blocks of land in the West Taupo 'l'imber Lands, and that it is 
to apply the moneys 1::10 retained towards payment of the charge created b 
14 of the Maori Purposes Act, 1935, as :.;;oon as the liability for the amou 
charge is apportioned by the Commission referred to in subsection (3) of 
1::1ection 14. We are also informed that these moneyi,; are earning inte 
lower rate than the 3 per cent. which is being Gl1arged on the loan ace 
does not seem right that there should be any difference between the r 
eharged and the rate being earned, and we recommend that a reductio 
accordingly be made in the rate of interest charged in cases where mo:a 
held for the purpose of being applied in or towards satisfaction of the 
apportioned to the owners whose moneys are so held. 

48. 'l'he three questions on which we were directed to 
and out' answers thereto, are as follows:-

'' (i) Whether the charge imposed upon Maori lands, purs · 
section 14 of the Maori Purposes Act, 1935, ought in equity and 
conscience, to have been imposed upon the whole or any part of 
lands.'' , 

A.nswe·r: 'l'he charge ought not to have been imposed to , 
repayment of the foll amount of £23,500. Subject to reduction 
amount to £20,000 and subject to apportionment as between the . 
and the Maori owners and as between the various blocks of latl 
accordance with i,;ubsection ( 3) of the said section 14, the •;harge 
be said to be a proper one, in equity and good conscience. 
" (ii) vVhether in equity and good conscience, the Maori owne. 

sucl1 lands if: liable ought to have been rendered liable :for the repayme 
the whole or any part of the moneys paid by the said Board to the E 
Box Company, Limited, pursuant to the said 1::1ection. '' 

Answer: 'l'he l\:Iaori ownern of the land ought not to hav 
rendered liable for repayment o:f the whole sum of £23,500 paid b 
Aotea District Maori Land Board to the Egmont Box Co., Ltd. 
they ought to have been rendered liable for repayment of £ 
(from which the Crown's proportion ascertained in accordance , 
the said subsection (3) should be deducted). 
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" (iii) I£ it be reported that such charge ought not, in equity and good 
science to have been imposed and that in equity and good conscience 

e said Maori owners if liable should not have been rendered liable for 
e repayment of the whole or any part of the said moneys as aforesaid, 
n to recommend what further sum, if any, should now be paid to the 

· d Board by the Crown in respect of interest moneys and the costs and 
penses incurred by the said Board in. defending actions brought agaim,t 
with regard to the payment of the said moneys.'' · 

Answer: We recommend that, in addition to the payment of 
£3,500 necessary to reduce the sum of £23,500 to £20,000, the following 
further sums should now be paid to the Ao tea District . Maori Land 
Board by the Crown :-

(a) £750 on account of the costs of defending the action by 
Hoani Te Heuheu 'l'ukino. 

(b) An amount equal to interest at 3 per cent. per annum 
on £750 from the date of the payment of the costs by the Board 
until the date of the payment of the £750. 

( c) An amount equal to interest at 3 per cent. per annum on 
£3,500 from 25th June, 1935, to the date of the payment of the 
sum of £3,500 to the Board. 

9. As, in our view, the Maori claimants who were represented in the 
dings before us by Mr. Cleary were justified in claiming that they, and 
owners of the West Tau po Timber Lands, should not be made liable for 

ayment of the whole sum of £23,500 in issue before us, we think that they 
d receive a payment towards their costs of the proceedings before us. 
r the circumstances we consider that it would be a gracious act on the 
of the Government to pay a sum of £1,50 to them towards those costs. 

We have the honour to be, 
Your Excellency's humble and obedient servants, 

D. J. DALGLISH, Chairman. 
H. M. CHRISTIE, Member. 
R. ORMSBY, Member. 

Wellington, 16th July, 1951. • 

By Authority: E, E. OWEN,. Goverµment Pr~ter, Welling.ton.-1~5:j., 
9d,~ . 




